### IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

#### **BILLY RAY ROBINSON**

**APPELLANT** 

V.

NO. 2009-KA-0414-COA

#### STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

#### CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

The undersigned counsel of record certifies that the following listed persons have an interest in the outcome of this case. These representations are made in order that the justices of this court may evaluate possible disqualifications or recusal.

- 1. State of Mississippi
- 2. BILLY RAY ROBINSON, Appellant
- 3. Honorable Eddie H. Bowen, District Attorney
- 4. Honorable Robert G. Evans, Circuit Court Judge

This the  $31^{54}$  day of  $40^{54}$ , 2009.

Respectfully Submitted,

## STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

None

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal follows a conviction sale of cocaine against Billy Ray Robinson and a sentence of ten years in MDOC, by the Circuit Court of Simpson County, Mississippi, following a jury trial held on October 10, 2007, the Honorable Robert G. Evans, Circuit Judge, presiding. Billy Ray Robinson is presently incarcerated with the Mississippi Department of Corrections.

### **FACTS**

On October 19, 2005 Mississippi Bureau of Narcotics Agents Shannon Gibson, Kyle

Reynolds and Ben Stevens as well as Simpson County Agent Mike Brown met with a confidential informant named Stacy James. At the meeting, the agents requested that James participate in an undercover operation to buy illicit drugs from drug dealers in Magee, Mississippi. James' car was outfitted with audio-video recording equipment; he also was given a body wire to wear and official state funds with which to purchase drugs. (T. 40-41). James left the meeting and drove into Magee where he made contact with Billy Ray Robinson.

James saw Robinson standing in a yard on North Raleigh Street in Magee. Robinson approached the passenger side of James' vehicle, they greeted each, other and James asked Robinson if he was "doing it," which is a street term for selling drugs. Robinson said that he did not currently have any drugs but offered to take James to an area where he might find some. Robinson got into the vehicle with James and they drove to 13<sup>th</sup> Northeast Street where James stopped the car, gave Robinson \$20 and asked him to purchase a "dub," a street-term for \$20 of crack cocaine. Robinson left the car and returned with the alleged crack cocaine rock, which he exchanged with James. The exchange was recorded by the video surveillance that was in James' vehicle. (T. 72-73).

Following the alleged buy, James returned to the post buy meeting location where he turned over the alleged crack cocaine as well as the audio-video recording equipment to the agents who eventually took the alleged cocaine to the Mississippi crime lab for analysis. (T. 43, 47). When tested, the substance was found to contain 0.2 grams of cocaine. (T. 60)

After deliberation, the jury returned and found Robinson guilty of the unlawful sale of cocaine. (C.P. 38, R.E. 4). Robinson was subsequently sentenced to a term of ten (10) years in the custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections. (C.P. 45, R.E. 5).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>1. There was little testimony regarding Robinson's arrest at trial. Robinson was arrested on November 1, 2006. (T. 56).

## **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

None

# **ARGUMENT**

None

#### STATEMENT OF COUNSEL

- 1. Counsel for the Appellant hereby represents to the Court pursuant to *Lindsey v. State*, 939 So. 2d 743 (Miss. 2005), that counsel has diligently searched the procedural and factual history of this criminal action and scoured the record searching for any arguable issues which could be presented to the court on Mr. Robinson's behalf in good faith for appellate review, and upon conclusion, has found none.
  - 2. The matters considered, reviewed and included in counsel's search were:
- (a) the reason for the arrest and the circumstances surrounding arrest of Mr. Robinson; (b) any possible violations of Robinson's right to counsel; (c) the entire trial transcript and content of the record; (d) all rulings of the trial court; (e) possible prosecutorial misconduct; (f) all jury instructions; (g) all exhibits, whether admitted into evidence or not; (h) possible misapplication of the law in sentencing; and (i) the indictment and all of the pleadings in the record; and (j) any possible ineffective assistance of counsel issues. (i) whether the verdict was supported by the overwhelming weight of the evidence.
- 3. Counsel further confirms that he has, as of the date of filing this brief, mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, a copy of this brief and correspondence informing Robinson that counsel finds no arguable issues in the record and that Robinson has a right to file a *pro se* brief.

- 4. Counsel for appellant requests that the Court grant Robinson forty (40) days of additional time in which to file a *pro se* brief if he desires to do so.
- 5. Counsel stands ready to prepare supplemental memoranda of law on any issues requested by the court.

# **CONCLUSION**

There are no issues that counsel can in good faith present to the court in this appeal.