## IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

**BILLY RAY ROBINSON** 

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2009-KA-0414-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

**APPELLEE** 

## BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

THE STATE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT.

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: CHARLES W. MARIS, JR.
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

#

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT
ARGUMENT
PROPOSITION: THE STATE RESPECTFULLY SUBMITS THAT THIS COURT SHOULD DETERMINE AT THIS JUNCTURE WHETHER THE RECORD IN THIS CASE PRESENTS ANY ARGUABLE ISSUE 2
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 4
•
TABLE OF AUTHORITIES
CASES
Bradshaw v. State, 6 So.3d 1123 (Miss.App.2009)
Lindsey v. State, 939 So.2d 743 (Miss.2005)
Neal v. State, 5 So.3d 1166 (Miss.App. 2009)
Smith v. Robbins, 528 U.S. 259 (2000)
RULE
Rule 3.1, Miss. Rules Prof. Conduct

#### IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

**BILLY RAY ROBINSON** 

**APPELLANT** 

VS.

NO. 2009-KA-0414-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

# **BRIEF FOR APPELLEE**

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Billy Ray Robinson ["Robinson"] was convicted in the Circuit Court of Simpson County, Honorable Robert G. Evans, Circuit Court Judge, presiding, of the crime of sale of cocaine, for which he received a sentence of ten years in the custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections. (C.P. 45) Aggrieved of the judgment thus entered against him, Robinson appealed. His defense counsel filed a brief pursuant to the holding of *Lindsey v.*State, 939 So.2d 743 (Miss.2005), after which Robinson was given more time to file a pro se supplemental brief. No such brief was forthcoming within the time prescribed.

# **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

Pursuant to the procedure outlined by the Supreme Court in *Lindsey v. State*, 939 So.2d 743 (Miss.2005), this Court at this point must determine whether this case presents any arguable issue, and, if so, order defense counsel to file a supplemental brief which addresses said issue.

### **ARGUMENT**

### **PREPOSITION**

THE STATE RESPECTFULLY SUBMITS THAT THIS COURT SHOULD DETERMINE AT THIS JUNCTURE WHETHER THIS RECORD PRESENTS ANY ARGUABLE ISSUE

Counsel for Robinson filed in this Court a brief stating that he had "diligently searched the procedural and factual history of this criminal action and scoured the record searching for any arguable issues which could be presented on Mr. Robinson's behalf in good faith for appellate review, and upon conclusion, [had] found none." Brief for Appellant at p. 3. That is, counsel for Robinson represents that there are no non-frivolous issues to present to this Court. Counsel also confirmed that he had mailed a copy of his brief to Robinson, and had advised him of his right to file a *pro se* supplemental brief. Brief for Appellant at p. 3. Finally, counsel asserts that he "stands ready to prepare supplemental memoranda of law on any issues requested by the court." Brief for Appellant at 4. Robinson did not file a *pro se* supplemental brief in this Court.

Pursuant to *Lindsey v. State*, 939 So.2d 743 (Miss.2005), citing *Smith v. Robbins*, 528 U.S. 259 (2000), the State respectfully submits that this Court now must review the record to determine whether defense counsel should be required to file a supplemental brief on behalf of Robinson. If the Court finds the existence of any arguable issue, regardless of the probability of Robinson's success on appeal, this Court should order defense counsel to file a supplemental brief. The State then would respond to defense counsel's supplemental brief. Without finding that there are no arguable, that is, non-frivolous issues, this Court should not consider the merits of any issues it finds, lest it run afoul of Robinson's right to be represented by counsel on appeal. On the other

hand, this Court should only order defense counsel to brief issues which it has determined to be arguable, that is, non-frivolous, lest it require defense counsel to violate the Rules of Professional Conduct, which prohibit counsel from raising frivolous issues in court. Rule 3.1, Miss. Rules Prof. Conduct.<sup>1</sup>

If this Court finds the existence of no arguable issues, then under *Lindsey*, it should simply affirm the judgment entered in the court below. *Bradshaw v. State*, 6 So.3d 1123 (Miss.App.2009); *Neal v. State*, 5 So.3d 1166 (Miss.App. 2009).

# **CONCLUSION**

The State submits that in accordance with the procedure outlined in *Lindsey*, this Court must determine from the record in this case whether any arguable issue exists, and if so, order defense counsel to file a supplemental brief on behalf of his client. If no arguable issue is found, this Court should simply affirm the judgment below.